
 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the  
 

EXTERNAL FUNDING PANEL 
 
At: 
 

Committee Room 3a, Guildhall, Swansea. 
 

On: 
 

Wednesday, 7 October 2015 

Time: 
 

3.30 pm 

 
AGENDA 

 
  Page No. 
 
1 Apologies for Absence.  
 
2 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 1 - 2 
 
3 Minutes. 3 - 7 

 To approve and sign, as a correct record, the Minutes of the Previous 
Meetings held on 5 August & 10 September 2015. 

 

 
4 Overview of Current and Forthcoming European and External 

Funding Applications. 
8 - 34 

 
5 Community Action Transformation Fund. 35 - 41 
 

 Dates and Times of Future Meetings for 2014/2015 Municipal Year.  
 •       2 December 2015; 

•       3 February 2016; 

•       6 April 2016. 
  
All at 3.30pm. 

 

 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal, Democratic Services & Procurement 
Thursday, 1 October 2015 

Contact: Democratic Services - 636923 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
EXTERNAL FUNDING PANEL (10) 

Councillors 
 
Labour Councillors:  
 

Mark C Child Andrea S Lewis 

William Evans Clive Lloyd 

Robert Francis-Davies Jennifer A Raynor 

Jane E C Harris Christine Richards (Deputy Leader) 

David H Hopkins Rob C Stewart (Leader) 

 
Officers: 

Dean Taylor Director of Corporate Services 

Sarah Crawley Head of Poverty & Prevention 

Mike Hawes Head of Financial Services 

Wendy Parkin Senior Lawyer, Legal 

Spencer Martin Voluntary Sector Relationship 
Coordinator 

Kathryn Boyle Grant Co-ordinator 

Paul Relf European Officer 

Democratic Services  

Archives  

Spares  

 
Observers (Non-Voting Members) 

Position Post Holder(s) 

Cabinet Members - Invited by the 
Chair if he deems the items under 
discussion are relevant 

 

Attend for Third Sector Matters 
Only 
2 x Representatives from the Third 
Sector (To be nominated by the Third 
Sector Working Group 

Carol Green 
Mary Lithgoe 

Attend for Community Action 
Transformation Fund Matters Only 
1 x Representative of Community / 
Town Council (C/T C) (The Clerk of 
the relevant Community / Town 
Council shall be invited to submit 
comments and on occasion the Chair 
of the C/T Council or Deputy shall be 
invited to attend) 

Mainly comments only via e-mail 
however relevant Chair is required by 
the Panel. 

 
Total Copies Needed: 23 
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\6\AI00013633\$o4e3vbxn.doc 

Disclosures of Interest 

 
To receive Disclosures of Interest from Councillors and Officers 

 

Councillors 

 
Councillors Interests are made in accordance with the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea.  You must 
disclose orally to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest. 
 
NOTE: You are requested to identify the Agenda Item / Minute No. / Planning 
Application No. and Subject Matter to which that interest relates and to enter 
all declared interests on the sheet provided for that purpose at the meeting. 
 
1. If you have a Personal Interest as set out in Paragraph 10 of the 

Code, you MAY STAY, SPEAK AND VOTE unless it is also a 
Prejudicial Interest.  

 
2. If you have a Personal Interest which is also a Prejudicial Interest as 

set out in Paragraph 12 of the Code, then subject to point 3 below, you 
MUST WITHDRAW from the meeting (unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Standards Committee) 

 
3. Where you have a Prejudicial Interest you may attend the meeting but 

only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether 
under a statutory right or otherwise.  In such a case, you must 
withdraw from the meeting immediately after the period for 
making representations, answering questions, or giving evidence 
relating to the business has ended, and in any event before further 
consideration of the business begins, whether or not the public are 
allowed to remain in attendance for such consideration (Paragraph 14 
of the Code). 

 
4. Where you have agreement from the Monitoring Officer that the 

information relating to your Personal Interest is sensitive information, 
as set out in Paragraph 16 of the Code of Conduct, your obligation to 
disclose such information is replaced with an obligation to disclose the 
existence of a personal interest and to confirm that the Monitoring 
Officer has agreed that the nature of such personal interest is sensitive 
information. 

 
5. If you are relying on a grant of a dispensation by the Standards 

Committee, you must, before the matter is under consideration: 
 

i) Disclose orally both the interest concerned and the existence of 
the dispensation; and 

ii) Before or immediately after the close of the meeting give written 
notification to the Authority containing: 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\6\AI00013633\$o4e3vbxn.doc 

a) Details of the prejudicial interest; 
b) Details of the business to which the prejudicial interest 

relates; 
c) Details of, and the date on which, the dispensation was 

granted; and  
d) Your signature 

 

Officers 

 
Financial Interests 
 
1. If an Officer has a financial interest in any matter which arises for 

decision at any meeting to which the Officer is reporting or at which the 
Officer is in attendance involving any member of the Council and /or 
any third party the Officer shall declare an interest in that matter and 
take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter and 
shall withdraw from the meeting while that matter is considered.  Any 
such declaration made in a meeting of a constitutional body shall be 
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.  No Officer shall make a report 
to a meeting for a decision to be made on any matter in which s/he has 
a financial interest. 

 
2. A “financial interest” is defined as any interest affecting the financial 

position of the Officer, either to his/her benefit or to his/her detriment.  It 
also includes an interest on the same basis for any member of the 
Officers family or a close friend and any company firm or business from 
which an Officer or a member of his/her family receives any 
remuneration.  There is no financial interest for an Officer where a 
decision on a report affects all of the Officers of the Council or all of the 
officers in a Department or Service. 

 

Page 2



 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE EXTERNAL FUNDING PANEL 

 
HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM 5, GUILDHALL, SWANSEA ON 

WEDNESDAY, 5 AUGUST 2015 AT 3.30 PM 

 
PRESENT:   

 
Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

W Evans 
R Francis-Davies 

C E Lloyd 
C Richards 

M Thomas 
 

  

Officers: 
 

K Boyle  - Grant Co-ordinator  
S Crawley - Head of Poverty and Prevention 
S Martin - Voluntary Sector Relationship Co-ordinator  
S Richards - Legal 
E Williams - European Project Officer  
S Woon - Democratic Services Officer  
 

8 ELECTION OF CHAIR PRO TEM. 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor C Richards be elected Chair Pro Tem for this meeting. 
  

COUNCILLOR C RICHARDS (CHAIR PRO TEM) PRESIDED 
 

9 AMENDMENT TO AGENDA. 
 
The Democratic Services Officer advised that there had been an error on the 
agenda.  Agenda Item 4 – Communities for Work (ESF) had been incorrectly marked 
to follow.  On the advice of the Monitoring Officer the item had been withdrawn.  It 
was therefore suggested that Members consider accepting the matter as an urgent 
item. 
  
RESOLVED that the urgent item entitled ‘Forthcoming European Social Fund 
Application for Communities for Work be accepted as an urgent item. 
 

10 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M C Child, D H Hopkins,  
J A Raynor, R C Stewart and M Thomas.  
 

11 DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of 
Swansea, the following interests were declared: 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the External Funding Panel (05.08.2015) 
Cont’d 

 

 

Councillor J E C Harris – Minute No.   – Overview of Grant Related Acceptances and 
Schemes in 2015-2016 – Chair of Partnership that submitted for grants listed. 
  
Councillor J E C Harris – Minute No.   – Current and Forthcoming European and 
External Funding Applications Update – Discussion about future membership of 
Rural Development Partnership having previously been a member of participating 
RDP. 
 

12 MINUTES: 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meeting of the External Funding Panel held on 3 
June, 2015, be approved as a correct record. 
 

13 URGENT ITEM - FORTHCOMING EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND APPLICATION 
FOR COMMUNITIES FOR WORK. 
 
The Head of Poverty and Prevention presented a report which sought approval for 
the running of the Communities for Work Programme within the Tackling Poverty 
Unit, alongside Communities First cluster teams. 
  
She advised that the Communities for Work (CfW) was a Welsh Government 
Programme tackling poverty through sustainable employment providing intensive 
employment mentoring and support.  It would deliver across all 5 of the Communities 
First Clusters in Swansea, operating as a separate but complementary programme 
to Communities First.  The Programme would focus on reducing the number of 18-24 
year olds who are NEET and increase the employability of economically inactive and 
long term unemployed adults who have complex barriers to employment. 
  
She detailed the recommendations, financial, legal and human resource implications. 
  
Members discussed the report and the following issues emerged from discussions: 
  

•       The Programme is guaranteed for 3 years with a possibility of an extension to 5 
years; 

•       The 16 employees would be Council employed staff and therefore the Council 
would be subject to paying redundancy costs/redeployment should their 
employment last over the period of the Grant.  During the 3-5 years of 
employment, the Welsh Government would cover redundancy costs; 

•       As is the case with all temporary grant programmes, there are procedures in 
place to give staff at risk notices prior to the end of the grant; 

•       Performance would be the responsibility of the Welsh Government, however, the 
Manager would be accountable for monitoring within the cluster area.  The job 
description for the manager would be to ensure adequate data collection on 
regular basis and monitoring.   

•       There is synergy between Job Centre Plus and Communities for work and they 
are intended to compliment each other; 

•       Preparing individuals for work needs to be embedded early on in childhood; 

•       Council departments need to make greater efforts to work in partnership; 

Page 4



Minutes of the External Funding Panel (05.08.2015) 
Cont’d 

 

 

•       Maintenance and monitoring of an audit trail is essential and it was recommended 
that the single team model was preferred due to the nature of the reporting and 
audit requirements for any European funding arrangements.  Having one team 
manager would lower the risk and improve performance;    

•       Lessons had been learned from the Coastal experience and work had been done 
to create a harmonised approach, especially with regard European Funding; 

•       European Funding had been structured to achieve outcomes, thus minimising the 
risk of funding being stopped; 

•       Regular monitoring reports would be submitted to Members for consideration; 
  
The Chair thanked the Head of Poverty and Prevention for her work and also the 
work of the European Team.  She stated that a communication plan would be 
required for publicising the programme. 
  
RESOLVED that the report be approved. 
 

14 CURRENT AND FORTHCOMING EUROPEAN AND EXTERNAL FUNDING 
APPLICATIONS UPDATE. 
 
The European Programme Officer provided an update on the European and other 
External funding report to the 3 June, 2015, External Funding Panel. 
  
Members’ noted the progress in respect of WREN, Heritage Lottery Fund – 
Enterprise, European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) Priority 4, Objective 4 
proposal for Kingsway Employment Hub, European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) Priority 4, Objective 4 Welsh Government ‘Use it or Lose it’ scheme 
submissions URBACT III, Parks for People and Alternative options for funding City 
Centre Regeneration.   
  
Members noted that Neath Port Talbot were leading on Work Ways + which was 
aimed at young people aged 16 plus.  The Scheme would seek to engage 920 
participants, with a total of 1500 participants over 3 years. 
  
The following key issues were raised: 
  

•       If individuals are being supported by Job centre, they are not eligible for 
workways +; 

•       Some Community First Wards were not included in the Cluster; 

•       The term ‘Community First Wards’ was defunct as reference was now to clusters 
and each has a pocket of clusters. 

  
COUNCILLOR C RICHARDS (CHAIR PRO TEM) LEFT THE MEETING. 

  
RESOLVED that: 
  
1)    Councillor R Francis-Davies be elected Chair Pro Tem for the remainder of the 

meeting; and 
2)     the recommendations be approved. 
 

Page 5



Minutes of the External Funding Panel (05.08.2015) 
Cont’d 

 

 

COUNCILLOR R FRANCIS-DAVIES (CHAIR PRO TEM) PRESIDED 
 

15 OVERVIEW OF GRANT RELATED ACCEPTANCES AND SCHEMES IN 2015/16. 
 
The Grant Co-ordinator provided an update on the Grants accepted by the City and 
County of Swansea which were not subject to individual approval by the Panel. 
  
The Grant Co-ordinator detailed the changes to the grant procedure.   
  
Members asked questions of the Officer who responded accordingly. 
  
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.40 pm 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 6



 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE EXTERNAL FUNDING PANEL 

 
HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM 5, GUILDHALL, SWANSEA ON 

THURSDAY, 10 SEPTEMBER 2015 AT 11.00 AM 

 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor C Richards (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

W Evans 
 
 

A S Lewis 
 

C E Lloyd 
 
 

16 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors DH Hopkins, JA Raynor and 
RC Stewart. 
 

17 DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of 
Swansea, no interests were declared. 
  

18 OVERVIEW OF CURRENT AND FORTHCOMING EUROPEAN AND EXTERNAL 
FUNDING APPLICATIONS. 
 
Sarah Crawley, Head of Poverty & Prevention indicated that the report circulated to 
Members relating to the Sands Cymru accommodation lease at Infonation on the 
Kingsway was unfortunately not the final version of the report. 
  
Following a short adjournment for Officers to clarify the situation, the report was 
withdrawn from consideration by Members. 
  
A revised report will be produced and the Panel will be reconvened at the earliest 
opportunity.  
  
  
  
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.15 am 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 7



 

1 

 

Report of the Director of People/Cabinet Member for Services for 
Children and Young People 

 
External Funding Panel – 7 October 2015 

 
OVERVIEW OF CURRENT AND FORTHCOMING EUROPEAN AND 

EXTERNAL FUNDING APPLICATIONS 

 
Purpose: 
 
 

 
To approve continuation funding via Welsh 
Government for Substance Misuse Action Fund 
(SMAF) Capital grant for Sands Cymru “The 
Place” Service. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

Poverty & Prevention Business Plan  
SMAF funding criteria and priorities 
CYP Plan  
 
 

Reason for Decision:  
 

All external funding applications made by the City 
& County of Swansea must be approved by the 
LA External Funding Panel. 
 
 

Consultation: 
 

Legal, Finance and Access to Services. Poverty & 
Prevention Service; Head of Corporate Property 
and Building Services 

 
Recommendation(s): 1. The City & County of Swansea should 

approve continuation funding to Sands Cymru 
for an accommodation lease within 
INFONATION for “The Place” service subject 
to the exercise of Delegated Powers by the 
Head of Corporate Property and Building 
Services in relation to the negotiation and 
agreement as to the terms that may be 
required in respect of the current lease 
arrangements for the property 47 The 
Kingsway. 

2. The City & County of Swansea agrees to 
undertake the grant claim and payment 
process to pass on funding to Sands Cymru. 

  
 
Report Author: Anita Evans, Planning Development & 

Performance Officer, Supporting People Team, 
Adult Social Care & Sarah Crawley, Head of 
Poverty & Prevention 

  
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 

2 

 

Finance Officer: Pini Patel Group Accountant Poverty & 
Prevention  
 

 
Legal Officer: 
 
Access to Services 
Officer: 

Wendy Parkin 
 
Sherill Hopkins 

 

 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report seeks approval for a SMAF capital funding request by Sands 

Cymru for continuation funding of £115,000 to purchase a further 5 year 
lease for accommodation space for “The Place” service.  This is a 
substance misuse education and prevention service 
www.theplaceswansea.com for young people. 

   
1.2  “The Place” service provides a specialism as part of INFONATION 

Service at 47 The Kingsway, www.info-nation.org.uk  a multiagency 
youth centre delivering a one stop shop for children & young people in 
the City Centre which is a LA service. 

   
1.4 The lease is from the City & County of Swansea’s INFONATION service 

and therefore the grant application ultimately is an income source for the 
LA. 

 
 
1.5 The place service also receives SMAF Revenue funding.  From the 2011 

application they are below. Sands indicate these targets were met and 
further treatment spaces will be created by the service being based in 
INFONATION by working in partnership and the sharing of resources. 

 INFONATION has an average of 18,000 contacts per year. 
 
• One to One low level engagement: Working on assumption that a worker 

from THE PLACE will be available for most of INFONATION drop in 
sessions, an estimate of 150 additional young people engaging on an 
individual education and prevention basis.  

 
• Group Work / Training: This would also include an increase in numbers 

of schools, youth clubs as a result of participation by INFONATION with 
this work. Number of additional / new training, health promotion sessions: 
20 (with session ranging from 8-25 individuals). 

 
• Complex needs / health / prescribing: improved and increase in facilities 

to offer medical assessments and intervention would offer a minimum of 
approximately 20 individual spaces. 

  
 
 

Page 9



 

3 

 

 2 Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
2.1 An EI screening assessment has been undertaken and a full EIA is not 
 required.  This application is for continuation funding and there is no 
 impact as funding and service delivery is to be maintained at current
 levels. 
  

3 Financial Implications 
 

3.1 The lease cost for a 5 year period is £115,000 in total for the period from 
1.4.2016 to 31.3.2021.  It includes heating, lighting, water/sewerage, 
cleaning maintenance, fire /security general services for the 5 years.  
The space will accommodate 6 members of staff. 

 
3.2 Sands will be paying this amount to INFONATION which is a LA service 

and therefore the grant will be used to provide an income to the LA and 
is to be paid in one lump sum. 

 
3.3 The LA will be required to process the SMAF Capital claim from Welsh 

Government once Sands Cymru has demonstrated that they have 
incurred the expenditure.   

 
3.4 The LA will be responsible for paying an invoice directly to Sands Cymru 

once it has received the funding from Welsh Government.  
  
 4 Legal Implications 
 
4.1 The Council is the freehold owner of 47 The Kingsway which is the 

property from which InfoNation currently operates.  The property is 
subject to a long term letting and consequent leaseback to the Council.  
In essence, if the Council needs to either assign or sub-let, those 
arrangements will require the consent of both the long leaseholder and 
the Council as the freeholder.  It would seem that the sub-lease term will 
need to be extended and the Head of Corporate Property will need to 
negotiate this with the long leaseholder and be satisfied that any new 
lease arrangements meet the Council’s Land Disposal Rules.  

 
4.2 INFONATION has a 20 year lease, until 30th September 2026 with a 

break clause at 10 years (30/9/16) should the LA want to exercise.  Due 
to emerging proposals around the redevelopment of the Kingsway there 
may be a need to adjust terms at the break which would need to be 
reflected in the sublet to Sands for “The Place”. 

 
4.3 SANDS also receive revenue from the SMAF (via NPT) in a contract 

which runs until 31st March 2016. This is likely to be extended until 30th 
September 2016 due to the delay in recommissioning.  

 
4.4 If SANDS are not successful in the recommissioning process, Welsh 

Government will ensure that the asset (the lease) is transferred to 
whomever the new provider is to ensure that the SMAF capital 
investment is retained for substance misuse services. This is standard 

Page 10



 

4 

 

practice with SMAF capital grants as there are often changes in providers 
as services are recommissioned. The lease drawn up for Sands on 
behalf of INFONATION must allow for this scenario. 

 
4.5 The terms of the SMAF Capital Grant funding will be legally binding and 

the grant monies could become fully repayable if such terms are not fully 
complied with by the Council. 

  
5  Background Papers: None 
   
Appendices:  

1. Application to Western Bay Substance Misuse Area Planning Board 
funding SMAF Capital funding application by Sands Cymru 

2. Sample SMAF Capital grant condition letter from Welsh 
Government 

Page 11



 EFP 1                           

The City & County of Swansea      
  

EFP1 PRE-SUBMISSION - Notification of Funding Bid to 
External Funding Panel 

THE EFP1 APPLIES TO HARD COPY AND ELECTRONIC SUBMISSIONS 
 

1. Scheme background and details - this is to inform the External Funding Panel 
of the intention to apply for a new grant proposal –  
 

a.  Awarding Body Welsh Government - Substance Misuse Action 
Fund Capital. 

 

b.  Name and purpose of 
Scheme/Programme (attach 
proposal brief in cabinet style 
report) 

The Welsh Government Substance Misuse 
Action Fund (SMAF) funding stream provides 
both revenue and capital funding to address 
substance misuse issues.   
 
This grant request for capital is for continuation 
funding to purchase a further 5 year lease for 
accommodation for “The Place” 
www.theplaceswansea.com a substance 
misuse education and prevention service run 
by Sands Cymru. 
 
The accommodation lease is from within the 
INFONATION Building at 47 The Kingsway, 
Swansea SA1.  
 
The Place service provides specialism as part 
of INFONATION www.info-nation.org.uk 
multiagency youth centre delivering a one stop 
shop for children & young people in the City 
Centre. A part of the Poverty & Prevention 
Business Plan.   
 
The lease cost includes heating lighting 
water/sewerage cleaning maintenance, fire 
/security general services for 5 years and will 
accommodate 6 members of staff.  

 

c.  Grant value in Total £ £115,000. 

d.  Grant period / timescale 
for delivery 

1.4.16 until 31.3.2021 

e.  CCS acting as Lead Body 
or Joint Sponsor?  Name 
other Partners. 

The City & County of Swansea is the lead 
sponsor as part of the multiagency SM Area 
Planning Board (APB).  The APB LA link is 
Social Services. 
The sponsoring department is Poverty & 
Prevention  
 

a 
Ref:  
 

Page 12



 EFP 1                           

f.  Detail links to existing 
schemes at Local, Regional 
or National level 

 
The service is part of INFONATION 
multiagency youth centre delivering a one stop 
shop for children & young people in the City 
Centre part of the Poverty & Prevention 
Business Plan . 
 

g.  Detail direct links to 
Council Policy, including, 
where appropriate, target 
areas  

 
Children & Young People Partnership  
Poverty & Prevention Business Plan  
City Centre  
 

h.  List key target and 
proposed performance 
measures 

The place service also receives SMAF 
Revenue funding.  From the 2011 application 
they are below. Sands indicate these targets 
were met and further treatment spaces will be 
created by the service being based in 
INFONATION by working in partnership and 
the sharing of resources, 

• INFONATION has an average of 18,000 
contacts per year. 

• One to One low level engagement: Working 
on assumption that a worker from THE 
PLACE will be available for most of 
INFONATION drop in sessions, an 
estimate of 150 additional young people 
engaging on an individual education and 
prevention basis.  

• Group Work / Training .This would also 
include an increase in numbers of schools, 
youth clubs as a result of participation by 
INFONATION with this work. Number of 
additional / new training, health promotion 
sessions: 20 ( with session ranging from 8-
25 individuals). 

• Complex needs / health / prescribing: 
improved and increase in facilities to offer 
medical assessments and intervention 
would offer a minimum of approximately 20 
individual spaces. 

j.  Does this grant require a 
continuation of funding by the 
Council after the grant period 
has expired?  This includes 

current or additional staff 

costs. Yes/No  
 

No 
The City & County of Swansea INFONATION 
Service is the landlord and is giving the lease 
to Sands Cymru for The Place.   This is an 
income stream to the City & County of 
Swansea.   Continuation of this lease is 
dependent on the continuation of the 
INFONATION service at 47 The Kingsway. 
INFONATION have a 20 year lease, until 30th 
September 2026 with a break clause at 10 

Page 13



 EFP 1                           

years (30/9/16) should the LA want to 
exercise.   

k.  Does the application 
require match-funding? 
Yes/No if it does where is this 
coming from? 

NO 
 

l. Will the project entail the 
employment of additional staff 
and on what basis? 

This is capital funding. 

M. Have you completed an 
EIA (Equality Impact 
Assessment) Screening 
Form (please attach)? 

 

Yes  

N. Is a full EIA report 
required? 

 

No  

 

2. Please complete the following financial information:  
 Current 

financial 
year 
£ 

Year 2 
 
£ 

Year 3 
 
£ 

Year 4 
 
£ 

Year 5 
 
£ 

Total 
 
£ 

Ongoing 
 
£ 

Total project cost:        

  Capital 115,000.00       

  Revenue        

Grant applied for:        

  Capital 115,000.00       

  Revenue        

Match Funding 
Internal 

N/A       

Match Funding 
External 

N/A       

 
3. Please complete the following: 

a. Does the funding meet the 
Council’s priorities? 

Yes, Poverty & Prevention Business Plan  
INFONATION 

b. What are the expected outcomes 
and are they clear and achievable?  
(link to 1h) 

Yes, to provide accommodation for The 
Place within the INFONATION One Stop 
Shop service enabling specialist education 
& prevention services to Children & Young 
People  
 

c. Is there an exit plan? (link to 1j/l) Further funding will be sought e.g. a SMAF 
Capital request to cover the lease cost at 
the end of the lease term. 
  

Page 14



 EFP 1                           

d. How is Value for Money being 
obtained? (procurement/ third party 
arrangements etc.) 

The lease costs have been set by the City 
& County of Swansea.  

e. What is the governance / 
management structure for the 
scheme? – What board/management 
team will it be reported to? 

 
The effectiveness of The Place service in 
its location will come under the governance 
of the Western Bay Substance Misuse Area 
Planning Board (via Neath Port Talbot) 
revenue contract. 

• There is a specific Delivery Group which 
sits under the Board  

• There is a specific Locality Group for 
each LA area.  

• All of the above have LA representation. 
 
This will be informed by the monitoring of 
the Poverty & Prevention Business plan 
and the INFONATION service.  
 

f. What are the major risks and how 
will they be managed?  

1. The City & County of Swansea 
INFONATION Service is the landlord 
and is giving the lease to Sands Cymru 
for The Place. The Place is linked to the 
City & County of Swansea continuing to 
rent the building 47 The Kingsway for 
NFONATION on that site.  
INFONATION have a 20 year lease, 
until 30th September 2026 with a break 
clause at 10 years (30/9/16) should the 
LA want to exercise.  Due to emerging 
proposals around the redevelopment of 
the Kingsway there may be a need to 
adjust terms at the break which would 
need to be reflected in the sublet to 
Sands for “The Place”. 

 
 
2. SANDS Cymru also receive revenue 

funding from the SMAF in a contract 
which runs until 31st March 2016. This 
is likely to be extended until 30th 
September 2016 due to the delay in 
recommissioning.  If SANDS are not 
successful in the recommissioning 
process, Welsh Government will ensure 
that the asset (the lease) is transferred 
to whoever the new provider is to 
ensure that the SMAF capital 
investment is retained for substance 
misuse services. This is standard 

Page 15



 EFP 1                           

practice with SMAF capital grants as 
there are often changes in providers as 
services are recommissioned. The 
lease drawn up for Sands on behalf of 
INFONATION should be drafted to allow 
for this scenario. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Authorisation  

 Name / Signature Date 

Responsible Officer: Sarah Crawley, Head of Poverty 
& Prevention 

5/08/2015 

(Group)/Accountant:  Pini Patel Poverty & Prevention/  
Chris Davies Social Services 

 

External Funding Panel 
 
Endorsed  /Not Endorsed 

  

 

Page 16



 

 

 
Office of the Chief Executive,  
Local Authority 
 
cc 
Western Bay APB Chair, Director of Public Health, ABMU Health Board; 
 Interim Substance Misuse Lead Officer; 
Substance Misuse Lead Officer; 
APB Capital Group Chair, Local Authority 
Property Management Local Authority; 
Head Substance Misuse Strategy Delivery, Welsh Government; 
Head of Substance Misuse Policy Development & Finance, Welsh 
Government; 
Deputy Director, Substance Misuse Policy, Corporate & Ministerial Business, 
Welsh Government; 
Substance Misuse Finance Manager, Welsh Government. 
 
 

22nd January 2015 
 
Dear Sir 
 
Award of Funding in relation to the Provider, for the delivery of 
Substance Misuse Treatment Services in a fit for purpose multi agency 
treatment premises. Additional Funding request (linked to WB01 
awarded in 2013/14) 2015-16 – WB21 
 
 
1.  Award of Funding 
 

(a) We are pleased to inform you that your Application has been 
successful and funding of up to £150,000,000 (One Hundred 
and Fifty Thousand Pounds) (“the Funding”) is awarded to you 
for the Purposes (as defined in Condition 4(a)). 

 
(b) The Funding relates to the period 1st April 2015 to 31st March 

2016 and must be claimed in full by 31st March 2016 otherwise 
any unclaimed part of the Funding will cease to be available to 
you.  

 
(c) This award of funding has been made subject to confirmation 

that the Local Authority can demonstrate that all avenues in 
ensuring value for money of the project have been explored and 
considered and will work to ensure that savings on the project is 

Page 17



 

 
2 

explored throughout the projects delivery. This will include 
providing on request, colleagues within Welsh Government 
ongoing reports on progress and how value for money is 
continually considered throughout project. 

 
(d) 'This award of funding has been made subject to adhering to 

commitments made within the application and subsequent email 
correspondence in relation to Community Benefits'.  

 
(e) If you have any queries in relation to this award of Funding or 

the Conditions please contact the Welsh Government Official 
who will be happy to assist you.  

 
 
2.  Statutory Authority and State Aid 
 

(a) This award of Funding is made on and subject to the Conditions 
and under the authority of the Minister for Health and Social 
Services, one of the Welsh Ministers, acting pursuant to sections 2, 
3 and 10 of the NHS Wales Act 2006 and 70 and 71(1) of the 
Government of Wales Act 2006. 

 
(b) You must comply with the European Commission’s State Aid Rules.   
 

 
3.  Interpreting these Conditions 
 

Any reference in these Conditions to: 
 

‘you’, ‘your’ is to the Local Authority;   
 
‘we’, ‘us’, ‘our’ is to the Welsh Ministers; 
 

‘Application’ is to your application dated 15th January 2015 as submitted by 
the Western Bay Area Planning Board for additional funding for refurbishment 
of the Provider for the delivery of Substance Misuse Treatment Services in a 
fit for purpose multi agency treatment premises – WB21.  
 
 
 
 

 
 ‘Welsh Government Official’ is to  
 

  
Substance Misuse Assistant Regional Advisor Dyfed, Powys and  
 
Information of the Substance Misuse Assistant Regional 

  
 or such other Welsh Government official as we may notify you. 

Page 18



 

 
3 

  
 
‘Project Manager’ is to 
 
Information of Project Manager   
 
‘Conditions’ is to the terms and conditions set out in this letter; 
 
‘Schedule’ is to the schedules attached to this letter;  
 
‘Payment Profile’ is to the payment profile set out in Schedule 4; 
 
‘APB’ is to the Western Bay Substance Misuse Area Planning Board 
and all organisations, bodies and persons comprising it; 
 
‘Costs Incurred’ is to the cost of goods and services you have 
received regardless of whether you have paid for them by the date of 
your claim. 
 
‘Notification Event’ is to any of the events listed in Schedule 3; 
 
‘State Aid Rules’ is to the rules set out in Articles 107 to 109 of the 
Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (or in those Articles 
that may succeed Articles 107 to 109), secondary legislation such as 
frameworks, guidelines and block exemptions produced by the 
European Commission derived from Articles 107 to 109, case law of 
the European Courts and decisions of the European Commission 
regarding the application of Articles 107 to 109; and 
 
any legislation will include all amendments to and substitutions and 
re-enactments of that legislation in force from time to time; 
 
 

4. What you must use the Funding for  
 

(a) You must use the Funding solely for the purposes set out in 
Schedule 1 (the “Purposes”).  

 
(b) You must achieve the targets and outcomes set out in Schedule 

2 (the “Targets”). 
 
(c) Any change to the Purposes or Targets will require our written 

consent which must be obtained from us in advance of 
implementing any change. Please note that we are not obliged 
to give our consent but we will consider all reasonable written 
requests. 

 
(d) You must not use any part of the Funding for: (1) party political 

purposes; (2) the promotion of particular secular, religious or 
political views; (3) gambling; (4) pornography; (5) offering sexual 

Page 19



 

 
4 

services; (6) purchasing capital equipment (other than as 
specified in the Purposes); (7) your legal fees in relation to this 
letter; (8) Costs Incurred or costs incurred and defrayed by you 
in the delivery of the Purposes prior to the period referred to in 
Condition 1 (b); (9) any kind of illegal activities; or (10) any kind 
of activity which in our opinion could bring us into disrepute. 

 
 

5. Funding Pre-Conditions 

(a) We will not pay any of the Funding to you until you have 
provided us with the following information and documentation: 

 
(i) documentary evidence that the signatories who have 

signed this letter on your behalf are duly authorised to do 
so;.  

 
(ii) documentary evidence that you have put in place all staff 

and other resources detailed in the Application as 
required to commence the Purposes;  

 
(b) Where you are required to provide information and 

documentation to us as evidence that you have satisfied a 
particular pre-condition, Condition or in support of a claim, the 
information and documentation must be in all respects 
acceptable to us. We reserve the right to reject any information 
and documentation which is for any reason not acceptable to us. 

  
6.  How to claim the Funding  

(a)  The Funding will be paid to you in arrears based on Costs 
Incurred by you in the delivery of the Purposes as detailed in the 
Payment Profile.  

(b) You must claim the Funding in accordance with the dates set 
out in the Payment Profile. You must claim the Funding 
promptly. We reserve the right to withdraw any part of the 
Funding that you do not claim promptly.  

(c) You must submit your claims for payment of Funding to Finance 
Officer, Substance Misuse Policy and Finance Team, Welsh 
Government, or such other person and address that the Welsh 
Government may stipulate from time to time. 

(d) You must use our current claim pro-forma (which is available 
from Finance Officer) and attach the following information to 
each claim  

(i) a declaration from you that the Costs Incurred are in 
accordance with the Expenditure Profile and have been properly 
incurred;   

Page 20



 

 
5 

(ii) a progress report on the delivery of the Project.  The 
progress report must identify and explain any slippage in the 
delivery of the Project. 

(iii) the Expenditure Profile. In the event of any slippage in the 
delivery of the Project, you must provide an updated 
Expenditure Profile for approval by us;  

(e) We will aim to pay all valid claims as soon as possible and 
typically within 21 days. 

7. Your general obligations to us 
 
You must:  
 
(a) safeguard the Funding against fraud generally and, in particular, 

fraud on the part of your management, employees and/or 
suppliers and notify us immediately if you have reason to 
suspect that any fraud has occurred or is occurring or is likely to 
occur. You must also participate in such fraud prevention 
initiatives as we may require from time to time. 

 
(b) comply with all applicable laws or regulations or official directives 

whether derived from domestic, EU or international law; 
 

(c) put in place and maintain adequate insurances to cover against 
the risks which may arise in connection with any property or any 
activity undertaken in delivery of the Purposes.  We reserve the 
right to require you provide proof of your insurance;  

 
(d) co-operate fully with the Welsh Government Official and with any 

other employee of the Welsh Government or consultant 
appointed by us to monitor your use of the Funding and your 
compliance with these Conditions. 

. 
8. Declarations  

 
You declare that:  
 
(a) you have the power to enter into and to perform the obligations 

set out in these Conditions and you have taken all necessary 
action to authorise the entry into and performance of the 
obligations under these Conditions;   

 
(b) no litigation or arbitration is current or pending or, so far as you 

are aware, threatened, which have or could have an adverse 
effect on your ability to perform and comply with any of these 
Conditions;  

 

Page 21



 

 
6 

(c) the information contained in your Application is complete, true 
and accurate; 

  
(d) you have disclosed to us all material facts or circumstances 

which need to be disclosed to enable us to obtain a true and 
correct view of your business and affairs (both current and 
prospective) or which ought to be provided to any person who is 
considering providing funding to you;  

 
(e) you have discussed and agreed the Targets with us and you are 

confident that they are realistic and achievable. 
  

9. Notification Events and their consequences 

(a) You must notify us immediately if a Notification Event has 
occurred or is likely to occur but we also reserve the right to 
notify you where we believe a Notification Event has occurred or 
is likely to occur.  

 
(b) We will seek to discuss the Notification Event with you and to 

agree a course of action to be taken to address the Notification 
Event and in doing so we will consider both the seriousness of 
the Notification Event and whether or not it can be remedied.  

 
(c) We will be entitled to take any of the actions listed in Condition 

9(d) if: 
   

(i)  despite our reasonable efforts we have been unable to 
discuss the Notification Event with you, or  

(ii)  we notify you that the Notification Event is not capable of 
remedy, or 

 (iii) a course of action is agreed with you but you fail to follow it, 
or any conditions attached to it are not met (including 
without limitation the timescale for such course of action), 
or  

 (iv)  the course of action fails to remedy the Notification Event to 
our satisfaction. 

 
(d) If any of the circumstances set out in Condition 9(c) occurs we 

may by notice to you:  
 

(i) withdraw the award of Funding; and/or  
 (ii)  require you to repay all or part of the Funding immediately; 

and/or  
 (iii) suspend or cease all further payment of Funding; and/or  
 (iv)  make all further payments of Funding subject to such 

conditions as we may specify; and/or  
(v)  deduct all amounts owed to us under these Conditions from 

any other funding that we have awarded or may award to 
you; and/or 

Page 22



 

 
7 

 (vi)  exercise any other rights against you which we may have in 
respect of the Funding. 

 
(e) All repayments of Funding must be made to us within 28 days of 

the date of our demand. You must pay interest on any overdue 
repayments at a rate of 1.5% per annum above the Bank of 
England base rate from time to time or at such other rate as may 
be required by the State Aid Rules. Interest will accrue on a daily 
basis from the date the repayment is due until actual repayment 
of the Funding, whether before or after judgment. You must pay 
the interest together with the overdue repayment.  

 
10. Monitoring Requirements 
 

You must: 
 

(a) provide us with such documents, information and reports which 
we may reasonably require from time to time in order for us to 
monitor your compliance with the Conditions including without 
limit: 

 
i)  provide a completed Statement of Capital Expenditure by 30 
November 2016;  

 
 

(b) meet with the Welsh Government Official and such other of our 
representatives as we may from time to time reasonably require; 

 
(c) ensure that the Project Manager (or such other person as we 

may agree) attends all meetings with the Welsh Government 
Official. 

   
 

11. Audit Requirements 
 

(a) You must: 
 

(i) maintain clear accounting records identifying all income 
and expenditure in relation to the Purposes;   

 
(ii) without charge, permit any officer or officers of the Welsh 

Government, Wales Audit Office or European 
Commission at any reasonable time and on reasonable 
notice being given to you to visit your premises and/or to 
inspect any of your activities and/or to examine and take 
copies of your books of account and such other 
documents or records as in such officer’s reasonable 
view may relate in any way to your use of the Funding. 
This undertaking is without prejudice and subject to any 
other statutory rights and powers exercisable by the 

Page 23



 

 
8 

Welsh Government, Wales Audit Office or the European 
Commission or any officer, servant or agent of any of the 
above;  

 
(iii) retain this letter and all original documents relating to the 

Funding until we inform you in writing that it is safe to 
destroy them; 

 
 

(b) Under paragraph 17 of Schedule 8 to the Government of Wales 
Act 2006 the Auditor General for Wales has extensive rights of 
access to documents and information relating to monies 
provided by the Welsh Government. He and his officials have 
the power to require relevant persons who control or hold 
documents to give any assistance, information and explanation 
that they may require; and to require those persons to attend 
before them for such a purpose.  The Auditor General and his 
staff may exercise this right at all reasonable times. 

  
 
12. Third Party Obligations  

 
(a) Nothing in the Conditions imposes any liability on us in respect 

of any liability incurred by you to any third party (including, 
without limit, employees and contractors). 

 
(b) You must indemnify us against any liabilities, claims, 

proceedings, demands, losses, costs and expenses suffered or 
incurred by us directly or indirectly arising as a result of or in 
connection with any failure by you to perform fully or in part any 
obligation you may have to a third party. 

13. Intellectual Property Rights & Publicity 

(a) Nothing in these Conditions transfers to us any rights in any 
intellectual property created by you as a result of the Purposes. 

(b) You must acknowledge our support on all publicity, press 
releases and marketing material produced in relation to the 
Purposes. Such acknowledgement must be in a form approved 
by us and must comply with the Welsh Government’s branding 
guidelines. 

  
(c) You must provide the Welsh Government Official with a copy of 

all material listed in Condition 13(b) for our approval before any 
such material is published and you may not publish such material 
without our prior written approval. We will endeavour to respond 
to all written requests for approval within 10 working days. 

 

Page 24



 

 
9 

(d) You agree that from the date of this letter until 5 years from the 
date of the final payment of Funding we may include details 
about your organisation and business, the Funding and the 
Purposes in Welsh Government promotional materials and you 
further agree to cooperate with our reasonable requests to 
achieve the production of such materials.  

14. Access to Information 

(a) You acknowledge that we are subject to the requirements of the 
Code of Practice on Public Access to Information published by 
the Welsh Government (the “Code”), the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 (the “FOIA”), the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004 (the “EIR”) and the Data Protection Act 1998 
(the “DPA”). 

 
(b) You acknowledge that we are responsible for determining in our 

absolute discretion whether: 
 

(i) to disclose any information which we have obtained under 
or in connection with the Funding to the extent that we 
are required to disclose such information to a person 
making a disclosure request under the FOIA or the EIR; 
and/or 

 
(ii) any information is exempt from disclosure under the 

Code, the FOIA or the EIR. 
 

15. Buying Goods and Services 
 

You must buy all goods and services required for the Purposes in a 
competitive and sustainable way so as to demonstrate that you have 
achieved best value in the use of public funds. 
 

16. Giving Notice  
 
(a) Where notice is required to be given under these Conditions it 

must be in writing (this does not include email but may include a 
letter attached to an email) and must prominently display the 
following heading: 
 
 “Notice in relation to the Additional Funding Request for the 
Provider for the delivery of Substance Misuse Treatment 
Services in a fit for purpose multi agency treatment 
premises (linked to WB01 awarded in 2013/14) 2015-16 – 
WB21”. 

 
(b) The address and contact details for the purposes of serving 

notice under these Conditions are as follows 
 

Page 25



 

 
10 

You:   the Project Manager at the address stated in Condition 3. 
  

Us:   the Welsh Government Official at the address stated in 
Condition 3. 

 
(c) A notice will be deemed to have been properly given as follows:- 
 

Prepaid first class post: on the second working day 
after the date of posting. 

 
By hand:  upon delivery to the address 

or the next working day if after 
4pm or on a weekend or 
public holiday. 

 
By email attachment: upon transmission or the next 

working day if after 4pm or on 
a weekend or public holiday.   

 
17.  Equal Opportunities 
 

You must apply a policy of equal opportunities as employers, as users 
of volunteers, and as providers of services, regardless of race, 
gender/gender identification, sexual orientation, religion and belief, age 
or any disability.  

 
18. Welsh Language 
 

Where the Purposes include or relate to the provision of services or 
written materials (including signage and information published online) 
in Wales, they must be provided in Welsh and English, unless it would 
be unreasonable or disproportionate to do so. Guidance about 
providing services and written materials in Welsh can be obtained from 
the Welsh Language Commissioner on 0845 6033 221 or by visiting 
www.comisiynyddygymraeg.org. 
 

19. Sustainability 
 
Your use of the Funding must (where reasonably practicable) meet the 
Welsh Government’s current agenda for sustainable development and 
the environment.  
 

20. Welsh Ministers’ Functions 
 

You acknowledge that the Welsh Ministers have a range of  functions 
which will continue to accrue and be amended and that decisions in 
relation to each such function are obliged to be taken in the light of all 
relevant and to the exclusion of all irrelevant considerations. You 
agree that nothing  contained or implied in , or arising under   or in 
connection with, these Conditions will in any way prejudice, fetter or 

Page 26



 

 
11 

affect the functions of the Welsh Ministers or any of them  nor oblige 
the Welsh Ministers  or any of them to exercise, or refrain from 
exercising, any of their  functions in any particular way.   

 
21. General  

 
(a) If at any time any of these Conditions is deemed to be or 

becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under 
any law, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions will not in any way be affected or impaired.  

 
(b) No failure or delay on our part to exercise any power, right or 

remedy under these Conditions will operate as a waiver of any 
such power, right or remedy or preclude its further exercise or 
the exercise of any other power, right or remedy. The powers, 
rights or remedies hereby provided are cumulative and not 
exclusive of any powers, rights or remedies provided by law.  

 
(c) Any amendment or variation these Conditions must be in writing 

and signed by us and you in the same manner as this letter. 
 
(d) You may not assign or otherwise dispose of in any way your 

rights, benefits, obligations or duties under these Conditions. 
 
(e) Conditions 7, 9, 11, 13, 14, and 21(e) and such other Conditions 

which by implication need to continue in force beyond the final 
payment of Funding will so continue in full force and effect. 

 
(f) The award of the Funding is to you alone and no one else is 

entitled to make any claim in respect of the Funding or seek to 
rely on or enforce any of these Conditions. 

 
(g) These Conditions are to be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of Wales and England as applied in 
Wales and the parties hereto submit to the exclusive jurisdiction 
of the courts of Wales and England.  

 
22.  How to accept this offer of Funding  
 

(a) To accept this award of Funding you must sign and return a 
copy of this letter to Finance Officer, Substance Misuse Policy 
and Finance Team, Welsh Government. None of the Funding 
will be paid to you until we have received your signed letter.  

 
(b) We must receive your signed letter within 21 days of the date of 

this letter, or this award of Funding will automatically be 
withdrawn.  

 
 
 

Page 27



 

 
12 

Yours faithfully,  
 
 
 

Signed by, Substance Misuse Regional Advisor  

South Wales Substance Misuse Advisory Regional Team; 

under authority of the Minister for Health and Social Services,  

one of the Welsh Ministers. 

Page 28



 

 
13 

SCHEDULE 1 
The Purposes 

 
 

 
 

Eligible Costs Value (£) 

Additional Contract Sum Costs –  
Additional costs to approval WB01 
(below) related to the need for additional 
counselling rooms and more team offices 
within the building as well as the need to 
move the entrance at the front of the 
building which is a new build in order to 
provide a fit for purpose building multi 
agency building.  

£150,000 

 
To be claimed during 2015/16 

 
Please see approval letter for WB01 for the existing cost breakdown 
2013/14.  

 
In accordance with Condition 10, we may from time to time request 
information about the Project and any grant paid under it. The information you 
provide must comply with your Application. Any failure by you to provide 
satisfactory information will be deemed a Notification Event. 
 
Nothing in this Schedule shall relieve you of any of your obligations to us as 
set out in the Conditions. 

Page 29



 

 
14 

SCHEDULE 2 
The Targets  

 
Proposed Outcomes to the Project:  
 

- To house both the local treatment providers and independent service 
users group which will advance the development of the integrated 
service delivery model.  

- To develop onsite dispensing and daily pabrinex clinics. Over time it is 
envisaged that 30 service users will receive substitute medication and 
pabrinex injections daily from the premises. 

- Reduce supervised consumption costs with onsite dispensing. 

- To house the GP virtual surgery (which is a CDAT led service that has 
a case load of  patients) currently operating from the Hospital, this will 
reduce the demand at this NHS delivery site.  

- To ensure children and young people have a specialised and 
accessible centre that will be inaccessible to adult service users. This 
will be made possible by a separate entrance to the building, which 
isolates this service from the main area of the building, and can only be 
accessed by staff that has the appropriate key fob access. 

- This provision will also be adjacent to the Youth Offending Service 
building which will ensure greater integrated working and a more 
effective utilisation of resources. 

- To expand the Provider volunteer, student counsellor and social work 
placement programme, enabling the Provider to optimise upon their 
volunteer resource and incrementally increase service capacity. 

- To develop an IT suite to provide essential skills to service users. 

- Explore the possibilities of delivering ambulatory detox services from 
the premises.  The premise has the potential to detoxify 20 patients per 
year, with the integrated support of Provider.   

Page 30



 

 
15 

SCHEDULE 3 
Notification Events 

 
The Notification Events referred to in Condition 9 are listed below: 

 
1. repayment of any part of the Funding is required under European 

Law (whether under State Aid Rules or otherwise);   
 
2.  you fail to comply with any of the Conditions;  

 
3. you fail to achieve any or all of the Targets; 
 
4. we have made an overpayment of Funding to you; 
 
5. any declaration made in Condition 8 is incorrect in any respect or, if 

repeated at any time with reference to the facts and circumstances 
then existing, would be incorrect;  

 
6. any petition is presented or resolution passed or other action taken 

for your bankruptcy or winding-up or a petition is presented for an 
administration order against you;  

 
7. a receiver or an administrative receiver is appointed in respect of 

you or in respect of all or any part of your assets;  
 

8. a moratorium in respect of all or any of your debts or a composition 
or an agreement with your creditors is agreed, applied for, ordered 
or declared;   

 
9. you are unable, or admit in writing your inability, to pay your debts 

as they fall due;  
 

10. any distress, execution, attachment or other process affects any of 
your assets;  

 
11.  a statutory demand is issued against you;  

 
12. you take steps  to dispose or dispose of all or part of your interest in 

any assets Funded by us under this agreement;  within 25 Years of 
the last payment of Funding 

 
13. you cease, or threaten to cease, to carry on all or a substantial part 

of your business;  
 
14. there is a change in your constitution, status, control or ownership 

and/or your external auditors resign; 
 

15. there is a change in your shareholders, directors, trustees or 
partners; 

Page 31



 

 
16 

16. any event occurs or circumstances arise which in our opinion gives 
reasonable grounds for believing that you may not, or may be 
unable, to perform or comply with any of your obligations under 
these Conditions. 

 

Page 32



 

 
17 

SCHEDULE 4 
Payment Profile 

 
The sum of Funding available to you in each financial year (i.e. 1 April – 31 
March) is:  
 
2015/2016 - £150,000 (as per schedule 1) 
 

The Funding will be paid to you in arrears in periodic instalments (payments 
can be claimed monthly if required) in the sum of the Costs Incurred by you in 
connection with the Purposes.  
 

You shall not be entitled to claim in a financial year any amount of Funding 
which is more than the amount set out above for that financial year without our 
prior written agreement even if this results in the maximum level of Funding 
not being paid.  

 

Page 33



 

 
18 

We hereby accept the award of Funding in relation to the Provider for 
the delivery of Substance Misuse Treatment Services in a fit for purpose 
multi agency treatment premises. Additional Funding request (linked to 
WB01 awarded in 2013/14) for 2015-16 – WB21 and the Conditions 
relating to the Funding. 
 
Award of Funding  
 
______________________________________ Signature 
An authorised signatory of the Local Authority  
 
 
______________________________________ Name  
 
 
______________________________________ Job Title 

 
 
______________________________________ Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________ Signature 
An authorised signatory of the Local Authority 
 
______________________________________ Name  
 
 
______________________________________ Job Title 

 
 
______________________________________ Date 

 

Page 34



Report of the Director of People 
 

EXTERNAL FUNDING PANEL - 7 October 2015 
 

Community Action Transformation Fund 
 

 
Purpose: 
 

To decide upon applications to the third round of 
funding of the Community Action Transformation 
Fund. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan; Sustainable 
Swansea – fit for the future 
 

Reason for Decision:  
 

To decide on the third round of applications to 
the Fund. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal, Access to Services. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 
 

1) 
 
 

The Panel decide which of the applications submitted to the fund it 
wishes to support. 

  
  
  
 
Report Author: Spencer Martin 
  
Finance Officer: Mike Hawes 
  
Legal Officer: Wendy Parkin 
  
Access to Services Officer: Sherill Hopkins 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1  Background, Sustainable Swansea Fit For the Future 
 
 The scale of the financial, demographic and sustainability challenge 
 requires the Council to adopt a radically different approach to previous 
 years.  An approach that focuses on: 

 

• The core future purpose of the Council 

• The transformation of services and the model of delivery 

• Greater collaboration with other councils and local organisations, 
  community groups and residents 

• And, above all, sustainable solutions with prevention at the heart 
  of this 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



 
 This ambition is set out in Sustainable Swansea – fit for the future. 
 
1.2 A number of Budget Principles underpin Sustainable Swansea, two of 
 which are particularly relevant to the Community Action Fund: 
 

• Different Models of Delivery: options will assess service provision (cost 
and outcomes) against other delivery models including: collaboration, 
outsourcing, partnering, community action 

• Personal Responsibility: action is required to change behaviour and to 
increase the number of people and communities helping themselves as 
part of our approach to sustainability 

 
1.3 Sustainable Swansea has four workstreams to achieve the desired 
 change, one of which is New Models of Delivery.  Part of the New 
 Models of Delivery workstream is the Community Action strand.  The 
 aims of this strand are to: 
 

• Build community capacity for self help 

• Use community assets to support local action 

• Increase and support voluntary sector provision 

• Increase co-production 
 
1.4 The City and County of Swansea Agreed to set aside the sum of
 £300,000 to support the delivery of the aims of the Community Action 
 strand of the Sustainable Swansea Project.  In particular, funding will be 
 aimed at proposals from community groups to: 
 

• Develop proposals to run Council services locally and/or  

• Facilitate the transfer of community assets 
 
1.5 The first round of Funding allocated £80,000 to four projects. The second 

round of funding allocated £38,024 the third round closed on the 5th 
September 2015, for this round the Fund received three applications 
which are presented to the panel for decision. 

 
2. Principles Underlying the Fund 
 
2.1 The Five underlying Principles of the fund are: 
 

1) The Council will either reduce or withdraw from service provision across 
many current activities due to budget and hence service constraints. 

2) The Council recognises the value of those services to the Community 
(either geographically or in the wider sense in terms of a user 
community), and wishes to encourage the continuation and development 
of those services through a different model delivered specifically by and 
through the Community. 

3) The Council will not be able to support the cost of services going forward 
however delivered.(Unless they are directly commissioned or procured 
from the Community based provider) 

Page 36



4) The Council is willing to consider applications from interested parties who 
express an interest in continuing elements of service delivery which may 
or may not involve the use of current Council assets. 

5) The Council will not retain any continuing liability for services or assets 
once transferred 

 
3. Applications and Criteria 
 
3.1 All applications should meet the principals and purposes listed above and 

can be used for (not exhaustive): 
 

• Support to develop a business case expanding levels of community 
action, and/or providing a community based model of service delivery 

• Funding for a local community engagement exercise to ascertain and 
develop levels of community involvement and engagement for 
community led services 

• Support the development of co-produced services with the community 
and voluntary sector 

• Work to set up a community trust to provide a community based service 

• Training local people to run services or manage a facility, resulting in the 
Council withdrawing resources over time, or transferring assets. 

• Evidenced costs in developing a business plan for future service delivery 
including market research, accountancy and legal costs. 

• Potential initial set up costs, including engagement, training, capacity 
building. 

• Support for professional advice 

• It is anticipated a majority of supported projects will be based on revenue 
funding, however capital funding will be considered if the expenditure can 
demonstrate a long term saving or that an innovative project can be 
developed with some investment in capital expenditure. 

 
3.2 The Fund will complement existing initiatives, but will also be used for 
 different things, rather than simply be additional money for existing 
 services.  In other words, innovative bids which offer new solutions and 
 build on community action. 
 
3.3 Three applications have been received by the closing date for the third 

round of the fund on 5th September 2015. 
 

1. Ynystawe Cricket and Football Club – Pitches at Ynystawe Park 
(deferred at last meeting) 

2. Whitehead-Ross Educating and Consulting Limited – Satellite Youth 
Club provision in Clydach and Pontarddulais 

3. Coed Bach Park Community Bowls Association – Bowls Pavilion in Coed 
Bach Park, Pontarddulais  
 
.  

3.4 Applications are summarised in Appendix A – full application packs will 
be available prior to and at the meeting. 

 

Page 37



 
4. Equality & Engagement Implications 
 
4.1 Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken as appropriate on any 

decisions made at the panel. 
 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 The Community Action Transformation fund has a pot of £300,000 to 

distribute over the two scheduled rounds – Allocated to date totals 
£118,024, leaving a maximum £181,976 to allocate in rounds three and 
four.  The total amount of approved applications will be noted in 
preparation for any future rounds. 

 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 The External Funding Panel is a Decision making panel as ratified by 

Cabinet at its meeting of 18th November 2014. 
 
6.2 Any grant awarded will require a contract to be entered into between the 

applicants and the Council to which both parties will be legally bound.  
 
 
 
Background Papers:  None. 
 
Appendices:  List of Applications – Round 3 – Community Action 
Transformation Fund. 
 
 

Page 38



APPENDIX A 
Community Action Transformation Fund 
 
Round 3 September 2015 
 

No Group Proposal Synopsis Amount 

 
01 

 
Ynystawe 
Cricket and 
Football Club 

 
The project is for the transfer of asset and responsibility for the Cricket and Football 
pitches at Ynystawe Park to the club.   
 
The grant will be utilised to purchase various items of machinery to enable the club 
to take over the maintenance and administration of facilities to a high standard for 
use by football and cricket clubs, schools and the wider local community.  
 

Estimated (by Applicant) saving to CCS: approximately £15,000 pa 

 
£23,070 

 
02 

 
Whitehead-
Ross 
Educating 
and 
Consulting 
Limited  

 
Earlier this year young people from across the city were given a chance to have 
their say on local authority budget proposals which would have seen larger 'Hub' 
youth clubs remaining while smaller 'satellite' clubs would be closed in Clydach , 
Gendros , Pontarddulais, St Thomas, Rhossilli and Morriston 
 
Closure of the youth clubs was originally proposed because the council's youth 
service was looking to move towards an approach which targets support to those 
young people who need support the most.  Fortunately the local authority decided 
to keep these 'satellite' youth clubs open for the time being as the local authority 
looked at alternative ideas to save £81m over the next three years. 
 
WREC is proposing to take on the management and delivery of two satellite 

 
£25,854 

P
age 39



youth clubs in order to help sustain the future of youth clubs in both Clydach and 
Pontarddulais.  Our proposal would see two evening sessions over 50 weeks , 
with a weekly session in both Clydach and Pontarddulais.  Existing local 
authority-delivered open access provision is currently only run over 39 weeks, 
leaving the school holidays without any diversionary activities for young people.  
In contrast this proposal would see clubs open for a full 50 weeks each year. 
 
Delivered by approachable  Youth Workers,  the group  offer open access  
provision one evening  a week from 6:30pm - 8:30pm  incorporating  opportunities  
for young  people to participate  in structured  activities  and access  information , 
advice and guidance , along with a variety of accreditation to raise skills . 
 
Estimated (by Applicant) saving to CCS: £1,002.68 saving in Year 1 (despite 

extended weeks of opening and addition of outdoor pursuit camps) 

£26,857 saving in Year 2 
 

 
03 

 
Coed Bach 
Park 
Community 
Bowls 
Association 

 
The application is made by Coed Bach Park Community Bowls Association. The 
Association is recently formed to represent three lawn bowls clubs of long standing, 
who are based at Coed Bach Park, Pontarddulais, Swansea. The associated bowls 
clubs being Coed Bach Bowls Club (incorporating Merched Coed Bach Ladies), 
Graig Merthyr Bowls Club and Pontarddulais Bowls Club. 
 
All three clubs play on the bowling green at Coed Bach Park, owned and currently 
maintained by the City & County of Swansea.  
 
The aims of the Association are to preserve the long history of lawn bowls at Coed 
Bach Park and to ensure the sustainability of the bowling green facility for future 
generations within the community to enjoy. The application is for some initial works 

 
£14,760 

P
age 40



to the banks surrounding the pitch, groundskeeper training course for members, 
equipment and maintenance costs 
 
Estimated (by Applicant)  saving to CCS: £7,200 per annum plus estimated 

further maintenance in the region of £12,000 to £15,000 for urgent renewal of 

surrounds. 

    

 TOTAL  £63,684 

    

 

 

P
age 41


	Agenda
	2 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.
	3 Minutes.
	Minutes 10 sept clear

	4 Overview of Current and Forthcoming European and External Funding Applications.
	SmAF append 1
	smaf appen 2

	5 Community Action Transformation Fund.

